PUBLIC HEARING
MONDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2018
6:45 P.M.

Roll Call

Dave Buchewicz presiding. Board members Walt Sackinsky and
Ed Snee were present. Also in attendance were: Karen Fosbaugh,
Township Manager; Chief Dennis McDonough; Steve Bovan,
Esq., Solicitor; Glenn Prokopovitch, Code Enforcement Officer;
and Aaron Laughlin, Director of Public Works.

Purpose of Hearing The purpose of the Public Hearing is to take oral or written
testimony on the condition of the following properties to determine
if the properties should be declared Public Nuisances by the Board
of Supervisors, and subject to the appropriate abatement
procedures and/or fines and penalties as outlined in the Code of the
Township of South Park.

Testimony

Owner(s):
Joseph Kmonk
Patriotic Properties LLC

Location:
6524/6530 Church Street
South Park, PA 15129
Lot/Block No. 887-R-22

Joseph Kmonk
Patriotic Properties LLC

6532 Church Street
South Park, PA 15129
Lot/Block No. 887-R-15

Joseph Kmonk
Patriotic Properties LLC

6536 Church Street
South Park, PA 15129
Lot/Block No. 887-R-19

Mr. Prokopovitch: Thank you. The area experienced heavy rains
and flooding during the week of June 18, 2018. As a result, the
properties located at 6524, 6530, 6532 and 6536 Church suffered
damage to the structures. On Monday, June 25, 2018, a site
inspection was performed by Daniel Mesmer, of Gateway
Engineers, at the Township's request to assess the damage to the
homes that occurred from the flooding waters. On July 2, 2018,
the Township received a Structural Assessment Report from
Gateway Engineers. Based on Gateway's observations, the
property located at 6532 Church Street suffered damage to the coal
storage area under the front porch and is repairable. The remaining
properties located at 6524, 6530 and 6536 Church suffered
extensive foundation damage, and the cost to repair the damage

was estimated to greatly exceed the present value of the homes and
the land they occupy. On October 2, 2018, Irving Firman,
Solicitor for South Park Township, sent an enforcement notice to
Joseph and Kathleen Kmonk informing them that the Township of
South Park intends to take action against them for their properties
located at 6524, 6530, 6532, and 6536 Church Street for failure to
make efforts to remediate the damages and the decline of the
property since the flooding regarding overgrown vegetation,
standing water, and rodents. On November 12, 2018, the Board of
Supervisors scheduled a Public Nuisance Hearing for December
10, 2018. On November 15, 2018, a certified letter was sent to the
property owners. On November 19, 2018, the Township received
the green card containing the signature of Kathleen Kmonk. On
November 29, 2018, letters were sent to area neighbors within a
200 foot radius. On December 3, 2018, the area near the properties
were posted, and this evening, December 10, 2018, a meeting will
be conducted to determine if the properties are a nuisance. At this
time, I would like to enter this into the public record. Thank you.
Mr. Buchewicz: Any property owners here? Would you come up
and state your name and address, please.
Joseph Kmonk, 3019 Decker Drive: Ok, I'm not really disputing
anything. I just wanted to appear here on behalf of Patriotic
Properties. These properties here have been owned for years and
have been maintained during that time that we've owned them. A
devastating flood, for the second time in a year, hit the area and it
rendered the buildings unrepairable. According to the Township
engineers' report that we received, it stated that there would be no
permits issued to rebuild these structures. They were badly
damaged, but it wasn't even an option on our part to rebuild them
or do anything. We were not going to get the proper permits
because it was in a flood plain, which we knew about because we
have flood insurance. But something has occurred over the years
within that flood plain that does not allow new construction or, I
guess, repairable permits since we purchased the property.
Basically, there was flood insurance on the property. We were in
touch with the bank on these issues here for these findings, and
they basically called the loan due because you couldn't rebuild
them. The checks were basically made in their name and they took
their end of the money to secure the loan, which was part of the
loan agreement. So, we weren't able to repair these. We didn't
have a choice about repairing them. Taxes are current;
everything's current to this point. We applied for an emergency
tax appeal hearing basically because the property is... They really
don't have much of a value at this point. They're not able to be
repaired to be built on. The debt of the property is around $50,000
at this point that is out there. There's basically no money to do

anything with these properties. We tried to have the fire
department in touch with them to train on them and possibly burn
them down to get rid of the structures, and that was turned down, I
believe by the Township. And that's fine also. I'm not sure
exactly of the reasons, but when I talked to the fire chief, he
expressed that it wasn't going to happen. And at this point right
now, I've been in contact with Steve Campbell, who owns the
body shop next door. He's interested, very interested, in taking
over the properties. He just is trying to find a little bit more of
what needs to be done, what he needs to do, and how much time is
going to be involved in this to tear the structures down. And I
believe he's going to... There's a lot of things he can do with it,
but he can basically use it for a parking lot; it's right next door.
Or, we are willing to turn it over to the Township at this point right
away if... I'm not sure if that's something that you do or would
want. But, we're not here to fight that at all, it's just it was a
devastating flood that financially put a burden on the corporation
or the LLC, which really is basically rendering it dissolvent.
There's no assets to draw on. There's no more income, nothing
that we can do with the properties.
Mr. Sackinsky: What about the insurance money?
Mr. Kmonk: It's gone. It was used to pay the loan off; the bank
took it. They didn't foreclose; the checks were written in their
name because the bank was listed as the additional insured. So,
there wasn't nothing to really even fight over. When the reports
were given to the bank, the fact that we could not rebuild or do
anything to restore these properties, at that point it wasn't even an
issue for them. They just basically said well if they're going to
take the money and go. Otherwise, we could've taken that. It was
almost $200,000 we could've used to rebuild those, which we did
the first time when it was flooded eight months ago... not quite as
much damage. These were structurally hit pretty good. I think the
water came in the foundations.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: The one report, Mr. Kmonk, that's here, this is
on the property at 6532. I believe that's the one that the... Is that
the duplex?
Mr. Kmonk: Duplex? Yes.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: His conclusion and recommendation were the
damage to the home is repairable. He didn't say you could not
secure a permit. He said in his report, the engineer, since this
parcel land is located within the flood plain of Piney Fork Creek,
and considering the prospect of the potential for repeated flooding,
abandonment and demolition is a viable option. He didn't say you

could not restore that property. It was because it was in a flood
plain.
Mr. Kmonk: Which I understand.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: Yes. So it's not like, it's not as though there was
no option on that particular property.
Mr. Kmonk: You know what. I don't have the reports here. Do
you have them all?
Mrs. Fosbaugh: I have it. I have all four. Yes. The only reason
why he was recommending that was because we're having
flooding of increasing intensity.
Mr. Kmonk: Oh, I understand. I mean there's two issues with
that flooding. One is the.. .and I don't know nothing about flood
plains, but when the Piney Fork Development went up there, I
don't know where that water's going. And the other issue, from
what I understand, is where the church bridge is, which is one of
the reasons why that flooded, because it's not deep enough to have
the water flow. But, to us, it doesn't really matter who or how the
flood was caused. It was ... When my attorney looked at this and
the bank reviewed it, I'd have to go back and look, I was told or
shown that permits would not be issued because it was in a flood
plain at this point, and they would not issue building permits.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: Well, as I said, for 6532,1 think the way these
reports are written, it has here, the houses should be demolished.
Okay, this is with the report. I'm reading from the actual report,
this 6524 and 6530 Church Street. Okay? His conclusions and
recommendations, alright, is that the overall condition of both of
these homes have been compromised and not suitable for
habitation and that the houses should be demolished and the
foundation, excavation, backfilled and so forth. But he added,
"since this parcel of land is located within the flood plain of Piney
Fork Creek, new residential construction should be prohibited."
There's been a change in the flood plain ordinance, not in the
Township alone, but from the County and the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania. And that occurred due to repeated flooding, not so
much in that area, but overall in general. So, it's not just for your
area; it's anywhere there's a flood plain, and these homes are in a
flood plain. So, the criteria and the guidelines for building in a
flood plain are much more strict than they used to be simply for
that reason. It's continual, you know, massive devastation every
time there's these flooding events.

Mr. Kmonk: Right. And that's the part that I read. So it was
prohibited to rebuild. Correct.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: Yes, not rebuild your property, you know, fix it
or repair it; but if you demolish it, you cannot rebuild the home.
You can't build another home there. I mean he's saying he
recommended on most of the properties that they be demolished,
and you couldn't build a new home. But 6532 is the one where he
did indicate it was repairable.
Mr. Kmonk: Right. On that one, yes, on the duplex, that might
have been repairable. I think the way that we read it and
understood it was that they weren't going to issue the permits, and
maybe we misunderstood it when they said it was prohibited.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: Yes, because it didn't say anything about permits
for the restoration. There's nothing in here that says permits
wouldn't be issued. It's only for new construction, and that would
be restoration. It wouldn't be new construction. So, but, either
way, the biggest concern of the Township has been, I mean we feel
for your loss. I mean that was devastating as it was for many
people in the Township. But the fact is for the last six months, the
property, and you and I have spoken on the phone about this, those
foundations are open. They're open to the public; there open to the
children. We did ask that the least you could do was to secure the
foundations to make it so the kids are not getting in, and nothing
was done. You took no action whatsoever, even to just secure
them so that people couldn't access the foundations.
Mr. Kmonk: I understand.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: So, I mean, we had talked about that, and you
were going to send a letter here indicating your intentions, which
was never received. What do you intend on doing? Do you intend
on allowing these foundations to remain open like that?
Mr. Kmonk: I guess at this point we were exploring... We did
send a letter to... I sent you the letter from the attorneys about
what we were doing.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: Oh I have that, but I'm talking about we had
talked sometime before that about making just an effort to secure
those foundations so that there was not access. There was a big
concern there. Not only access to the, you know, the safety for the
people in the area, but nothing was ever done.
Mr. Kmonk: Sure. I understand.

Mrs. Fosbaugh: You talked about Mr. Campbell being interested
in these properties. Ok, the Township can't give him guidance on
these properties. He's going to have to get an engineer or
something to take a look at them. We're not going to pay our
engineer to tell you what to do. We paid for the Structural
Analysis Report at our cost, and we did not bill you for that.
We're not going to pay to analyze these properties and provide
guidance to Mr. Campbell. If he's interested, he's going to have to
secure his own engineer.
Mr. Kmonk: Right.
Mr. Sackinsky: You mentioned his interest is to create a parking
lot there.
Mr. Kmonk: I believe that's what he would do with it. If not,
eventually build, possibly, but he really can't build. He talked
about doing some different things.
Mr. Sackinsky: He can't build; he can repair the one.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: The one that's repairable.
Mr. Sackinsky: He can repair the one, but the other three have to
be torn down. Is there any talks that you had with him?
Mrs. Fosbaugh: Is he here? Mr. Campbell is here.
Mr. Sackinsky: Oh, do you want to come up, Mr. Campbell?
Steven Campbell, 6395 Helen Street: I don't really know a
whole lot yet. I'm still learning about what's going on.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: That's okay.
Mr. Sackinsky: Okay. Any questions you have of us before we
ask you?
Mr. Buchewicz: State you name and address.
Mr. Campbell: Steven Campbell, 6395 Helen Street, South Park,
PA. We had talked... I didn't know what... I needed to find out
what can be done or can't be done with the area. I asked earlier if
we could just board up the foundations until spring to see if... until
I get someone to look at it. I don't want anyone going in there and
getting hurt, or something like that, or falling down anymore.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: That's our concern.

Mr. Campbell: Put some supports under it, put some covers on
the outside so the houses are secure, and clean them out and get the
garbage out of them.
Mr. Sackinsky: I'd be careful of having people going in...
Mr. Campbell: Oh no, first you would do a secure foundation a
little bit, some jacks and stuff, then cover it up. Then, basically get
an engineer or somebody to come out and look at it and what needs
to be done with the house, how much it cost to fix, how much it
cost to tear down.
Mr. Sackinsky: Well, from what we just said, you can fix one,
the duplex. The other three have to be torn down.
Mr. Campbell: They have to be? I mean...
Mr. Sackinsky: Oh no, you can repair {inaudible}
Mr. Campbell: I would have an engineer look at it to see what
the cost would be, and then eventually part of it would be to secure
a permit to... not touch the creek bank {inaudible}bring the yards
up like four feet or so, even with the road, so the water don't lay
there. It's a big pit right there.
Mr. Sackinsky: That would be part of an engineering study.
Mr. Campbell: Right. Part of the fix of the house would have to
have dirt, yard brought up around the foundation just so the water
didn't push the foundations back in. The one house up there...
Mr. Sackinsky: The way storms are going, we could hit another
one here.
Mr. Campbell: Oh I know, I know. We're right there. We've
been there 30 years right next to it. Usually we know how far it
comes up. This was the worst that we've seen.
Mr. Buchewicz: Do you have any more you want to say?
Mr. Campbell: No. I'm just at the point of a learning process to
find out what's going on and what's available.
Jim Betler, 127 Cooper Road, Finleyville: My name's Jim
Betler. I own 6512 and 6514. I lived there all my life growing up.
Most of all, I feel bad for your loss. I thinks it was wrong for you

not to clean up, cut the grass, all that. As far as you wanting to
build up the property four feet...
Mr. Campbell: Dirt and that..
Mr. Betler: Are you going to build up my property four feet,
because there will be {inaudible} on my property there. Are you
going to build up the road to the access?
Mr. Campbell: We can't build the road up; that's Township
property.
Mr. Buchewicz: Sir, say what you want to say, without
addressing him. Talk about what you need or what you're thinking
about...
Mr. Betler: If he is going to tear down the houses, if he finds out
the cost is too much. First of all, building the dirt up, that throws
all the water onto me. That... I'll get a lawyer.
Mr. Buchewicz: Did you get flooded?
Mr. Betler: Yes, I did.
Mr. Snee: You're down by the creek...
Mr. Betler: I'm the two, one right beside the creek and then the
next one. Where was I? And then, my other concern, if you rip
down the houses and make a parking lot, then you're throwing
more water on them. Are you going to have to put ponds in,
holding tanks for the water?
Mr. Sackinsky: Well, you would have to address the stormwater
management water on impervious surface.
Mr. Betler: The sole issue down there all my life until Bruce
fixed the {inaudible} my section two years ago.
Mr. Buchewicz: What did they fix?
Mrs. Fosbaugh: Backflow preventers.
Mr. Laughlin: On the sanitary.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: Not on the storm.
Mr. Betler: Which we leave {inaudible). Now what is the
Township doing about St. Joan of Arc, which is responsible, hold

them responsible to keep them cleaned out. Now me and you
talked about this. If you go back in the records, they had to sign
something saying... Originally, it was supposed to be three
tunnels. The church didn't want three tunnels. They talked the
Township into two with them always keeping them {inaudible}
always cleaned out. If you look through your records or the state's
records, that has to be in writing some place.
Mr. Buchewicz: Three tunnels, now it's two tunnels?
Mr. Sackinsky: Underneath the bridge?
Mr. Betler: Yes, underneath the bridge.
Mr. Buchewicz: And St. Joan's is supposed to maintain it?
Mr. Betler: And St. Joan's is supposed to maintain it.
Mr. Sackinsky: Yes, you're responsible for anything on your
property...
Mr. Betler: That was supposed to be a throughway. The
Township let them put the gates up. Why? That was supposed to
be a throughway through there. Them gates were never supposed
to be there.
Mr. Sackinsky: I can't answer that. It's private property.
Mr. Betler: That was in the agreement, too.
Mr. Sackinsky: Well, we would have to see...
Mr. Betler: That's why somebody needs to go back...
Mr. Buchewicz: You say a throughway. A throughway from...
Mr. Sackinsky: So you can go through the parking lot.
Mr. Snee: From 88 and go down Church Street.
Mr. Sackinsky: If I was you, I would think you wouldn't want
that.
Mr. Betler: Well, I'm just saying.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: Excuse me. The Chief would like to comment
on the issue with the lots. Go ahead.

Chief McDonough: The parking lot and why the gates are there.
A number of years ago, going back probably 20 to 25 years ago,
we had a child hit during playground recess, hit with a car in that
parking lot. So, litigation happens shortly thereafter, and that's
what prompted the church and actually the Catholic Diocese to put
the gates up.
Mr. Betler: Ok, but they had to get permission from the
Township to do it. Did they not?
Chief McDonough: I don't know anything about that. It's private
property. I just know a child got hit during recess, and to prevent
traffic from going through there, they put the gates up on their
property.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: I don't know. I can't say one way or the other. I
don't know.
Mr. Betler: So, is the Township doing anything with the state,
which the state, after they put the levies up, were supposed to
dredge that creek every so often, which it's never been dredged
since them levies...
Mr. Buchewicz: You're saying that somewhere there's some
dredging? A letter of dredging from the state?
Mr. Sackinsky: The state usually does not allow you to dredge.
You can clean debris out of it.
Mr. Betler: Well, that's what I'm talking about.
Mr. Buchewicz: The owner of the property can.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: But it's also my understanding that PennDOT
was going to replace that bridge in that area right there. However,
this was about five years ago. Then they didn't move any further
ahead with the project because there was that consolidation of all
the Catholic churches, and they weren't even sure if St. Joan of
Arc was going to remain open as a church. Well, with this plan
now that is in place at Consol and some other developments that
are occurring of large size... St. Joan of Arc, although it doesn't
have a school any longer, it's in partnership with another, I think
it's St. Louise de Marillac, but it still offers masses and whatever.
So, I don't know, the state may very well, since the church is going
to survive, they may move ahead with that bridge replacement.
Mr. Campbell: They need the levy put up further. That's what
they need.

Mrs. Fosbaugh: Well, I don't know what they're doing.
Mr. Sackinsky: What do you mean, the levy?
Mr. Campbell: A mound next to the creek; keep the creek from
the bank. Because if you go through St. Joan's parking lot at the
far end, it's just flat right into the creek. They built levies from the
bridge down, all the way down to the {inaudible-fence??}, but they
never put up the other part. And up there comes over... when it
floods down there, it never floods from the creek. It floods from
the street, because it jumps the banks down there by St. Joan's
parking lot. It comes down the parking lot and then floods actually
back from the street back.
Mr. Buchewicz: It's not flooding from the creek?
Mr. Campbell: The creek doesn't come to the houses. It comes
through the parking lot and then floods the houses.
Mr. Sackinsky: The parking lot is what flooded the houses?
Mr. Campbell: Yes. It comes through the parking lot.
Mr. Sackinsky: Oh, that's why you got saved.
Mr. Betler: If you consider six feet of water being saved.
Mr. Sackinsky: Then you have a very great block wall
underneath your house.
Mr. Betler: Sump pumps.
Mr. Sackinsky: Anyway, let's get back to the issue.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: Yes, because... right.
Mr. Buchewicz: So what are we... you're trying to evaluate...
Mr. Campbell: I just want to know what I can and can't do.
Possibly a parking lot.
Mr. Buchewicz: You know, there's a grading ordinance and
everything else...
Mr. Campbell: Right. I understand all of that. I'm not saying to
do that, I'm just saying I want to find out.

Mr. Sackinsky: You're not sure what you're going to do.
Mr. Campbell: Right. I can't just park there. You got to do lots
of things to make a parking lot.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: I will tell you, you can't, even if you demolish
those home or whatever, you cannot use an auxiliary piece of
property just as an accessory use as a parking lot. You'd have to...
Mr. Sackinsky: You'd have to join them together with your
garage.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: Right. It would have to be a consolidation
subdivision. Glenn, maybe one of the things he should do is attend
one of our staff meetings. You could come to one of our staff
meetings. It doesn't cost anything. It's an informal meeting, and
you could, you know, I mean Gateway is our engineer, and they'd
be very familiar since they prepared these reports. They did the
analysis. They're familiar with the current floodplain ordinance
and things of that nature. Maybe they would be able to provide
you with some direction at that time.
Mr. Buchewicz: At that staff meeting, make sure you make
Gateway aware of the fact that they're getting flooded because of
water running from the parking lot, not from the creek.
Mr. Prokopovitch: Well, here is what I would recommend to
you. You're going to have to, number one, decide what you would
like to do with the property.
Mr. Buchewicz: Something got to block that up to make it safe.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: No matter who. And it has to be done soon. I
mean, you just can't leave this open like that to the public. That's
just... For six months it's been like that. That's not acceptable.
Mr. Snee: It's a real liability down there.
Mr. Kmonk: Is that really what needs done as far as this
hearing's concerned? Or does it go further than that?
Mrs. Fosbaugh: It goes further than that. I mean, you just can't
allow... even if you... What we're looking for in the immediate
future, and I'm not speaking for the Board of Supervisors, they can
make that determination, but me as a manager, what we're looking
for, this if affecting the health, safety and welfare of people in that
area. And my biggest concern is for a child that may come from
somewhere, if it's wondering around, and they like nothing more

than to climb into things and whatever, and something happened to
them. So, you have to do something. And then there has to be
some type of a plan as to what you're going to do. Those buildings
can't just stay there boarded up, so it looks like, you know...
Mr. Buchewicz: Yes. You got to move. So, we want you to tell
us what you can do, what you think about doing, and then take
some action on that.
Mr. Sackinsky: I think we have to tell them that we want certain
things done in a certain timeframe.
Mr. Buchewicz: {inaudible} boarded up. If they say it can't get
done for 30 days or 60 days...
Mr. Sackinsky: Well, that's what we will determine. We vote on
it. If we declare it a nuisance and give a certain amount of days
to... The first step, and I'm just speaking for myself, is to board up
all the exterior walls so no kids can get in there, especially if the
kids do use the playground over there. Those kids will wonder
over there at times. Oh wait, we don't have a school over there
anymore.
Mr. Snee: There is no school over there anymore.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: There's still kids around.
Mr. Buchewicz: Is there still CCD down there?
Mrs. Fosbaugh: Mostly in the evening.
Mr. Campbell: Still see a couple of kids down the block walking
up and down the street. You'll see them going from the trolley or
some place. They walk up.
Mr. Sackinsky: So, in my opinion there would be a certain timeframe to get it all boarded up and make it secure, the doors and
windows, whatever needs secured, but especially the foundation.
And then, a second step would be setting a timeframe to either
demolish or have somebody come in there and fix the foundation.
Mr. Buchewicz: When's your next staff meeting, Karen?
Mrs. Fosbaugh: It's not my staff meeting; it's Glenn's staff
meeting.
Mr. Prokopovitch: The next proposed staff meeting, it's...
what... Where getting everything all jumbled up here. With what

you're proposing to do... Do you own the property yet, Mr.
Campbell?
Mr. Campbell: No I don't.
Mr. Prokopovitch: Okay. Well, before Mr. Campbell would
really want to come to a staff meeting, you need to more or less
own the property.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: Well, don't you think, Glenn, though that he
should get some kind of direction to see if he even wants to
purchase it. Because if he can't do anything, why would he buy it?
Mr. Campbell: Because I don't want to {inaudible} something
that I'll be liable to tear it down, and I will be...
Mr. Prokopovitch: Well, why don't we do this, because it's
getting convoluted and what everybody's concerns are here. Call
the office or stop by, and we can talk and we can go from there,
okay? At this point. And, give me a list with what you would like
to do with it, and I could check. And then if we need to bring you
to a staff meeting, we will. Okay?
Mr. Campbell: Okay. That's good.
Mr. Buchewicz: Ok, one of the things we have to... We have to
get that place boarded up quickly. So, that's a {inaudible}
decision going to be and how we get that boarded up and what
timeframe. It has to be quick, though.
Mr. Sackinsky: We vote on...
Mr. Buchewicz: Yes, later on during the regular agenda.
Mr. Sackinsky: Okay, does anybody else have any other
problems?
Dakotah Taylor, 6512 Church Street -1 live directly next to one
of the worst houses hit down there. So, every day I leave for work,
and I look over and see a giant hole in the wall. You know, I walk
down the front steps of my house, and the wall is curved worse
than my dog's hind leg. It's bowed in; it's bowed out. I honestly
do not know how that house is still standing. My best friend is a
union brick layer. He's looked at that house; he says that house
will collapse at any given moment. I am waiting for the day I
either, (a) come home from work and that house is into my
property, my dad's property or it's laying on the road, collapsing in
on itself. Not only that, I mean, there's garbage all in the back

yard. There's feral cats, there's rodents, there's snakes. I do not
like snakes. I have not my entire life. I see snakes, I lose it. So,
that's a big no for me.
Mr. Buchewicz: Mr. Kmonk, is there garbage in the back, still,
that hasn't been cleaned up? I didn't notice that when I was down
there.
Mr. Kmonk: Yes. There is.
Mr. Taylor: And not only is it on his property, it's also the
church's property. Because half of the Trolley Stop Bar, their Bar
like, there's bottles down there, like where the basketball park, like
where the basketball thing is in the church parking lot, a little patch
{inaudible}. I walk the dogs through it, and I mean, there's just
trash all throughout there.
Mr. Buchewicz: What about, do we cite St. Joan's for that, to
clean it up?
Mr. Taylor: I would assume so.
Mr. Sackinsky: It's litter.
Mr. Prokopovitch: We can put them on notice.
Mr. Buchewicz: Yes, let's put them on notice, if that's part of the
whole problem, too.
Mr. Taylor: It's just... The other houses don't really concern me.
If that takes six months for them to get torn down, I don't care.
It's the house directly next to mine.
Mr. Buchewicz: And that number is, which one's that?
Mr. Taylor: I cannot remember off the top of my head.
Mr. Buchewicz: 6524, 6530, which one are you at?
Mr. Taylor: I'm at 6512.
Mr. Snee: It's probably 6524.
Mr. Taylor: I couldn't tell you off the top of my head.
Mr. Buchewicz: The one next to 6512.

Mr. Taylor: I work construction, you know, they preach safety
into our heads left and right, every day. I run cranes. So, you
know, I have a very high-risk job, in terms of life and limb. But,
that house is a definite safety hazard. I mean, there's kids that play
basketball in the basketball area of there. I mean, there's people
walking down the street. You know, when this first flood first hit,
I mean, you're having a least a couple people just stopping by
looking. Sometimes they'd go into the basement. They'd take
stuff.
Mr. Buchewicz: What house number's that, Mr. Kmonk? What
he's talking about.
Mr. Kmonk: 6524, possibly.
Mr. Buchewicz: 6524?
Mr. Taylor: Yes. The other houses I really don't care about. It's
that house next to ours.
Mr. Buchewicz: 6524. You should go down there.
Mr. Taylor: Yes. That worries me the most. I mean, there's
literally no front foundation on the house. It's resting on corners.
It's bad. I mean, we had two officers stop down there, what was
that...Sunday. They stopped down, and they were looking at it.
Because there was water...
Mr. Snee: I was down there taking pictures, and I called them
down there, because I had heard a hissing noise, and so on and so
forth.
Mr. Taylor: I think it was water running or something.
Mr. Snee: Is that what it was? I notified Officer Pantuso,
anyway.
Mr. Taylor: Yes. We walked around the backside of the house
and I was telling him about what was going on. And the cop, for
some reason, he tapped on the bricks with his foot, and I was like,
please sir don't do that, cause this thing might come down. So, it's
really just that house that I'm most concerned about, and just the
general litter down there. I try and pick up after myself. You
know, I don't like living in filth. When the landfill's up by Evans
Park, it can stay there. It doesn't need to be on Church Street. So,
that's all I got for you guys.

Mr. Buchewicz: Okay. Thanks for your comments. Anybody
else?
Lori Betler, 127 Cooper Road, Finleyville, PA: Throughout my
25 years being with my husband, numerous times he has to go
down and clean that out due to flooding and heavy rains. He's
never reimbursed. We've lost a lot of property and everything. As
far as the sewage backing up into our house, it was disgusting.
And it finally took us threatening the.. .it was actually a threat that
we were going to contact the EPA because their pumps were
wrong; they weren't handling it. So, that's when the check valve
finally came in, and it was something they should have done years
ago. As far as those houses down there, I have allergies. Jim and I
were planning on selling our house. When the kids move out, we
were going to move down there. I can't live down there because of
the mold. We had to buy him an air purifier. The odor is horrible.
Like Dakotah had said, there have been people coming down and
rummaging through that property. I mean, it's junk; it's trash.
How soon are they going to, you know, break into their property.
The grass hasn't been cut. As far as St. Joan of Arc, shame on St.
Joan of Arc. The only reason that house is standing is because of
all the debris, shrub and everything that stands in the front, because
St. Joan doesn't maintain that property. I mean, there will be times
we'll weed wack it. They'll be taller than I am.
Mr. Buchewicz: Which one are you talking about?
Ms. Betler: We're talking about in front of Jim's house, 6512.
We're there at the end of the line, the last two. But there's like a
{inaudible} parking lot there. Well, there's a strip of land there,
and the parking lot is over here, and there's a drive. We have the
grass cut there, but on this side, it's like from here to that wall, it's
just thick brambles and shrub. There's snakes, rodents, syringes,
god knows what else. I mean, it's just a crap hole.
Mr. Buchewicz: Glenn, we have to get on it.
Ms. Betler: That St. Joan of Arc, they need to do something. And
the way the Catholic Church is going right now, I don't see St.
Joan of Arc open in another five years. They'll be closed up.
Whether they go to St. Louise de Marillac's or they go to
Finleyville, St. Francis, I don't care where they go. I think their
time has come and gone. And I think St. Joan of Arc is going to be
sold and you guys are going to be left holding that. Now, let's talk
about all the slutting that's gone on for the last decade. We're like
the bathtub plug. The trolley gets shut down. Okay, what is that,
that's Federal, State?

Mrs. Fosbaugh: That's County.
Ms. Betler: County, whatever it is, but it's mass transit. So then,
so people are being moved in an environmentally clean way. Are
they going to put a retention pond in there? If so, who's going to
pay for it? Are you guys going to pay for it? The county, the state,
the federal government, PAT Transit through our taxes? I mean,
this is something that has to be addressed. This is an issue that's
been going on for years, and doing these little band aids of, you
know, securing the foundation, that's all good. That stuff should
have been cleaned up when it happened. Shame, shame, shame.
We get garbage pickup every seven days. We follow it. As far as
Mr. Campbell and his business, he does a great business. We've
taken our vehicles to him. Okay, he wants to put in a parking lot.
What's it zoned? Is it zoned residential, or is that property zoned
commercial? Like I said, there's a lot more issues there than him
just boarding up the property. That should've been done. There's
no doubt. The odors, like I said, I had to buy my kids an air
purifier because it stinks so bad down there. That's a health
hazard. Something needs to be done. I understand your hands are
tied, but the bigger picture is why has this been going on for
decades? And within the last 15, 10 years, it's just increased,
increased, increased. We've gone through so many gallons of
Clorox, it's ridiculous. Just throwing stuff out, it's ridiculous.
We've had to move the furnace from the basement. The hot water
tank, we took it upstairs and have instant hot water now. It's just
like, you know, when's our house going to be lost. Why are we
going to be stuck holding an empty bucket? I mean, Jim's putting
money into that house throughout the year and has maintained it.
He was raised there. It's just a shame. It's a shame what the
Catholic Church did, and they're going to say their broke. So, I'm
paying for the Catholic Church... I don't think so.
Mr. Buchewicz: You're talking about 6512.
Ms. Betler: Yes. And you know, as far as him saying that he's
going to file for an emergency tax relief, we're going to be filing
too to get our taxes lowered, too, because the house has lost its
value. Thank goodness my kids live there, because I don't think I
could get any other renters to live there at this time. So thank you
for your consideration, but, you know, it's so much more than him
boarding up his windows. This is something that's been going on
for years, and the state has to address it, because we're getting all
this stuff from Bethel Park coming in. Like Jim and Dakotah said,
we're also getting the garbage from Bethel Park down there that
we have to clean up. So, I mean, it's a big problem. I think, too, if
it would have been one of these newer housing plans, you guys

would have been jumping through hoops to make sure they were
okay.
Mr. Buchewicz: No, that's no true.
Ms. Betler: Well, good. I'm glad. I'm glad. But this is just
something that has gone on for years, and it's something that needs
addressed. Smacking a guy who's already down,... Yes, he
should've blocked that up and cleaned it up and cut the grass. But
you guys have to do something further up the pipe, because of all
this rain and water that's not being collected. How's the storm
management system? Does it need enlarged? I know we have a
terrible infrastructure.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: No we don't.
Ms. Betler: I'm just saying... not you per say. I'm just saying the
whole state has a terrible infrastructure.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: And part of the problem, too, is it's not just
normal rains anymore. An example we can use is that when we
got the rain in June, it was, I believe, correct me if I'm wrong, it
was four inches of rain over a limited period of time. It was like
two hours. When you get that kind of rain, you can't design a
storm sewer system big enough to accommodate that kind of
rainfall. Now, in September, we got seven inches of rain from
Hurricane Florence. That fell over, I think, a period of four day,
but it was a steady rain.
Ms. Betler: So it dissipated.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: We had less problems with that seven inches of
rain over that time period. Our storm and sanitary sewer system,
our storm sewer system handled it better than it could those four
inches of rain over two hours. It's those devastating rains that
we're getting that you just cannot design a storm system big
enough, like I said, to handle it.
Ms. Betler: Okay. Then, that's good news, there. So, what about
us being flooded from St. Joan's parking lot? Whose
responsibility is that to make sure that it doesn't happen in the
future? Something needs done is what I'm saying. You know, I
understand that you guys have your engineers and everything.
Your storm management does its job as best as it's scheduled to
do, and we do have these freak rain storms. Why does the
individual person have to pray to God that it doesn't happen that
we get hit that day? The house has been in Jim's family for over
100 years. It's just like only within the last 20 years, 15 years, it's

really gotten bad. I really think something needs done with St.
Joan of Arc, because I think that parking lot is a huge culprit with
it. We're also, again, looking at PAT Transit which loses revenue
when that line is closed down. You may want to get into talks with
PAT Transit about putting a retention pond in there, so that the
Trolley doesn't stop moving the people. I mean, it's a bigger
picture than what we're discussing tonight, and I really think you
guys need to start looking at the bigger picture.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: Believe me, we are looking at the bigger picture.
Ms. Betler: I do believe you.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: And we spent, this year alone, hundreds of
thousands of dollars looking at the bigger picture. I can assure
you. So, this is an ongoing problem, not only for us, and then
we're getting complaints, too. I mean, I'm getting nasty emails
from people from Finleyville. Actually, they were cursing in their
emails, telling South Park Township to keep their blank, blank,
water to themselves. Because our water, that we're getting from
Bethel, that they're getting from somewhere else it's just
{inaudible}.
Ms. Betler: Yes, it's a tributary.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: And part of the problem is, and we bring this up
all the time, we're involved right now, it's a report that I give once
a month, we're involved in, we all are, we're all required to in
Pennsylvania. This has become such an issue because the only
thing that we've done in Pennsylvania is pave the state and also
direct everything to the streams. Now we are required in all new
developments to install retention ponds. You don't just send it to
the storm sewer system. Because, as you can see, this is a result of
years and years and years of paving and whatever.
Mr. Betler: Okay. How about North Strabane Township? They
have a retention pond up at that, up off Walker Road up there. The
thing about it is, whenever it rains like crazy in that housing plan,
it didn't go into the retention pond; it went into people's
townhouses. That's where they lost the three houses and the whole
hillside slid away. They had a retention pond in.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: It has to be designed properly, too. I mean, you
just can't throw in a pond.
Ms. Betler: No, you can't. So, whenever you guys do develop,
like you were saying about the Consol, hey that's great your

repurposing the land. But, make sure they have some sort of
retention pond.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: They have three retention ponds. Three of them.
Ms. Betler: And as far as having the fire department burn those
houses down, who knows what's in there. I know asbestos is in
those houses.
Mr. Sackinsky: That's why you're not allowed to burn them
down.
Ms. Betler: I hope they don't burn them down!
{inaudible - three people talking at once}
Ms. Betler: Absolutely, absolutely. So, I think they just need to
demolish, build up, and plant a lot of trees down there to hold the
water back. And, contact St. Joan and have them finish the levies
that they were supposed to do all those years ago. Again, Jim has
contacted you guy numerous times. It has cost us a lot of money
throughout the years, as Mr. Campbell and the other man here. It's
a shame. It was a little neighborhood years ago, and now it's just a
dump. Thank you.
Mr. Kmonk: I'm not going to take much more of your time. So, I
just really would like everybody to understand that, you know,
rightful, when I said that those properties were fine years ago and
they've been maintained. This was something devastating that
happened. I do understand now about burning the buildings down,
but I'm looking for a solution. This whole thing happens at one
time, and it is just overwhelming of where to start. So, I'm glad
that you brought up the point of okay let's start here, here, here,
here, because I told you where the company stands debt-wise. To
tear those houses down, I did get a price. It's $35,000. I don't
know if that can be done.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: What, total?
Mr. Kmonk: Yes, for all.
Mr. Sackinsky: That's probably about right. We tear down two
or three houses every year, and it averages about $10,000.
Mr. Kmonk: And the boarding up and the cleaning up, yes, you
know what, I didn't even think about that. I'm looking at one big
thing when I spoke to Karen. It was what do you want to do with
these, and your right. You wanted to know what the plan was. We

did not get the insurance checks until October 20th. That's when
we knew what was actually happening with the properties at that
point. So, you know, now were into December. And, when I was
speaking to you early on, I couldn't even give you an answer
because I didn't have an answer from the bank. I didn't have an
answer from the insurance companies. And I had stated that that
would happen. You just said, hey, once you know. You know,
I'm willing to try to do the best I can with the resources that I have.
I understand everything that you are saying, and I frankly agree
with what you're saying. But, I have to figure out financially what
can be done, and what can't be done by me, by us. But, I'll do the
best that I can to take care of the problem. And that's what... you
know with talking to Steve, hopefully it would work out for him.
I'm giving him the property for a dollar. I'll give it to you for a
dollar, and say here. I don't want to throw my mess on you, and I
don't want to throw my mess on him. That's his biggest thing. He
wants to find out what is this going to cost me. I mean, I've
already told him, you know, the $35,000 to demolish them down,
but he's coming up with some other things, possibly, that might
make it feasible for him to say, hey I can do this. Whereas, I just
can't do it, and it's already past that point because the flood
money's gone. It's not there anymore to do anything with. So, but
I'll be waiting for your letter, and Karen I'll talk to you, or
whoever. So, you just let me know.
Mr. Sackinsky: Well, we'll be discussing this on the agenda
tonight, whether to declare it a nuisance and what the restrictions
will be on the nuisance.
Mr. Kmonk: That's fine, and I'll talk to you, or whoever I'm
supposed to, once I get that letter. At least I know where to start.
Thanks for your time.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: I still don't think we've had the answer, the
responses. What are we going to do with boarding up these
foundations?
Mr. Sackinsky: I thought we would address that when we come
to the agenda item.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: Alright. Okay, fine.
Mr. Kmonk: I figured that would be your first agenda... first
item on the agenda is to board up the houses. I'll look into that
right away. I'll talk to Ted Hale; he does board ups.
Mr. Snee: He does the board ups.

Mr. Kmonk: Yes. So, I mean, I'll see him. I don't know what
that entails. This, again, this is just overwhelming for me.
Mr. Buchewicz: Mr. Campbell was talking about a parking lot,
maybe. And you have St. Joan's parking lot is causing water
problems already, and you put a parking lot next to that, that's
another problem.
Mr. Kmonk: I don't disagree. He may walk away from this
meeting and say no I'm not interested. I don't know.
Mr. Campbell: You have to have water retention when you put
parking lots in. When St. Joan paved their parking lot, when they
asphalted that from gravel, they never put water retention in. We
had to put 140 feet of 4 foot pipe under our parking lot.
Mrs. Fosbaugh: That was years ago when they paved their
parking...
Mr. Campbell: I was there, it was still gravel when... We had to
put water retention when we built our garage. When they paved
their parking lot, probably in the middle 90's, they did not. ..91,
92, they paved that, 93, somewhere in there. It was gravel until
that point, then they put asphalt down. When they asphalted, they
never put no water tanks in, no catch basins, no nothing in. They
just paved over the old stuff, and that was good.
Mr. Sackinsky: Okay. I think you people have brought up some
issues that we have to address.
Mr. Buchewicz: Oh no, the public is good to come and talk about
these things. At least we get an idea of what's going on.
Mr. Kmonk: Thanks. I'll talk to you once...
Mr. Betler: Can I ask you a question? Can than the Township
have St. Joan of Arc dig... Me and you talked about this parking
lot when me and you talked. Can you guys make them dig that
asphalt up and put the pipe under it?
Mr. Sackinsky: I don't think so. I'm not sure...
Mr. Buchewicz: We have to find out. Now that your mentioning
if there should have been a retention pond put in before when St.
Joan asphalted, or whatever. They didn't do it.
Mr. Betler: I don't think they had... It was just some fly-bynights came down, and they just did it quick.

Mr. Buchewicz: That's something where going to look into.
We'll look into that and see what the restrictions were and...
Mr. Sackinsky: We'll look into it and hopefully come to a
conclusion.
Mr. Betler: And, another thing, go to the governor. The governor
just gave the Trolley Museum 2.5 million dollars, which they'll use
it in good fashion. But, how about giving some money where
people's lives are going to be destroyed or changed because of
what's going on. Hey, try to get some money off of the state.
Mr. Sackinsky: Well, we always try to improve...
Mr. Buchewicz: I want you to do me a favor, okay? Since your
talking about going to the governor, let's have you as a resident get
a hold of state representatives.
Mr. Betler: I already talked to my state representative.
Mr. Buchewicz: Who'd you talk to?
Mr. Betler: I talked to Saccone before he... Well he's gone now.
Mr. Buchewicz: And what did he tell you?
Mr. Betler: Well, what he always says. I'm doing my best. It's
tough. The state's broke.
Mr. Sackinsky: We always do try. If there's grants out there, we
try to approach grant money.
Mr. Betler: Okay, I'll tell you what. The taxes are high, but I tell
you what. If you could get a federal, to get a federal loan or
something, and put a couple extra bucks on the taxes to get
something done to prevent the problem a little bit, that would be
great. You need a retention pond down there.
Mr. Buchewicz: Yes, but they have retention ponds all the way
up in Bethel and that stuff, where the water's coming down.
Mr. Sackinsky: They have problems over there.
Mr. Betler: When they built all them houses in Bethel, them
housing plans, there wasn't no detention ponds, because it was
before.

Mr. Sackinsky: Before you had to do that.
Mr. Betler: So, now you got to put detention ponds all the way
down past where they built. Unfortunately, we are the dish.
Mr. Buchewicz: That's right. You're in the flood plain.
Mr. Sackinsky: We're in the middle, and then Finleyville, they
get our stuff. It goes down the line. Okay.
Mr. Buchewicz: Walt, do you have anything more to say?
Mr. Sackinsky: No, I think we discussed all of them things.
Other than we've all viewed the properties numerous times. So,
we know what you see, we've seen.
Mr. Buchewicz: Ed, do you have anything more to say?
Mr. Snee: No.
Mr. Buchewicz: Township Manager, do you have anything more
to say?
Mr. Fosbaugh: Well, I have a whole report, but I don't want to
read it because I think it's just rehashing what we've talked about.
So, I'll submit my report into the record.
Mr. Buchewicz: Okay. Chief of Police?
Chief McDonough: Nothing more than what's already been
brought to the attention of the Board. We did our three inspections
of December 3rd, December 7th, and December 10th, and
observed the same conditions. We definitely have our concerns
about the open foundation and things like that, which I'm sure that
the Board will wind up addressing.
Close Public
Hearing

Motion by Mr. Sackinsky and seconded by Mr. Snee to close the
public hearing. All members voted aye. Motion carried.

Adjournment

Motion by Mr. Sackinsky and seconded by Mr. Snee to adjourn the
public hearing. All members voted aye. Motion carried.
Time: 7:39 p.m.

